
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

MAY 26, 2020

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 26th of May, 2020 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the City
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota, Texas
77868 , at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:
 
To watch the City Council meeting live please visit the City of Navasota’s Youtube
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCltnx7BQt0TCIYJRiZ14g5w

If you have any questions during the meeting please email them to
council@navasotatx.gov or text 936-825-5557. Please ensure to provide your full
name and home address.

If you prefer to call-in please dial +13462487799 and enter Meeting ID: 709 770 2250
#

To Join Meeting virtually please click link below:

https://zoom.us/j/7097702250
1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City
Manager.

4. Staff Report:

(a) COVID-19 response;

(b) Street Department update;

(c) Parks Department update;

(d) Economic Development update;

(e) Board and Commission update; and

(f) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests,
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information
regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized
or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community
events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be
attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent



threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after
the posting of the agenda.

5. Consideration, and possible action on request from Summit Precast Concrete, LLC
for water rates for an industrial use meter.

6. Discussion and possible action on traffic changes and parking along Railroad
Street.

7. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 671-20, regarding the
requested annexation submitted by Miriah Cunneen on behalf of Anthony J.
Cunneen for a 9.063-acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota,
Grimes County, Texas, setting a date, time and place for a public hearing on a
proposed annexation of said property by the City of Navasota.

8. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 672-20, Supporting the City of
Navasota COVID-19 response grant application.

9. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 929-
20, amending Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04 Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax,
setting due dates and penalties and interest for delinquent accounts.

B. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 930-
20, amending Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04 Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax to
temporarily modify the hotel occupancy tax reporting and payment schedule.

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 931-
20, amending Chapter 8 Offenses and Nuisances, Article 8.03 Noise, Division 1.
Generally, Sec. 8.03.003 General Prohibitions, of the code of ordinances of the City
of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding general residential construction
working hours.

10. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 21ST OF MAY, 2020

/BS/

BY: BRAD STAFFORD, CITY MANAGER

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of
meeting of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and
correct copy of said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said
notice in the glass bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the
Municipal Building as well as in the bulletin board on the north side of the



Municipal Building of the City of Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and
readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said notice was
posted on the 21st of May, 2020 at 10:50 AM and will remain posted
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said
meeting. Agendas may be viewed at www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any
time deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.084.

DATED THIS THE 21ST OF MAY, 2020

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE AT (936) 825?
6475 OR (936) 825?6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825?2403.
 



City Manager’s Message 

An Executive Summary of Agenda Items and Current Issues 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council Meeting 

5-26-2020 

 

1.  Call to order 

 

2. Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance 

  

3. Remarks of Visitors 

Staff is unaware of anyone wishing to address the City Council. 

 

4.  Staff Report: 

COVID-19 response – Staff will provide the latest information regarding the 

COVID-19 response. 

 

Street Department update – Jose Coronilla will provide a street department 

update 

 

Parks Department update – Dom Lowery will provide and update on the parks 

department activity. 

 

Economic Development update Rayna Willenbrink will provide an update on the 

activities of the Economic Development department. 

 

5.  Consideration, and possible action on request from Summit Precast 

Concrete, LLC for water rates for an industrial use meter.  

 Summit Precast Concrete recently purchased the facility once occupied by Schulte 

Mobile Homes and more recently Ameristeel.  They construct concrete roadway 

barriers.  They have constructed a concrete batch plant on-site to build the 

barriers.  The facility has two water meters, one for the office and domestic water 

use, and the other meter is strictly for the batch plant and has no discharge to the 

sewer system.  The company requested a lower rate for water on the batch plant, 

and no charges for sewer on the batch plant.  Summit currently employs six 

people and will increate to approximately 20 employees by the end of June.   

 

 

6.  Discussion and possible action on traffic changes and parking along Railroad 

Street.  

Staff met with property owners again to finalize the request to change Railroad 

Street to one-way traffic (South to North) and parking on the west side.  TXDOT 

was contacted and said they had no issue with the changes. 

 

 



7.  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 671-20, regarding the 

requested annexation submitted by Miriah Cunneen on behalf of Anthony J. 

Cunneen for a 9.063-acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, setting a date, time and place for a public 

hearing on a proposed annexation of said property by the City of Navasota.  

Mr. Cunneen purchased the property adjacent to Fairway Drive on the west side 

of the City.  He plans to develop the property and requests annexation. 

 

 

8.  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 672-20, Supporting the 

City of Navasota COVID-19 response grant application. 

 The Governor’s office is seeking applications for the coronavirus emergency 

supplemental funding program.  The city application requests funding for the 

reimbursement of supplies related to the virus response as well as some salaries, 

specifically for the School Resource Officers, since they were taken out of the 

schools when schools closed and placed back into patrol and CID until school 

starts again. 

   

 

9.  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion 

and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by 

the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed 

from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City 

Council as part of the regular agenda. Consent Items are: 

 

A. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 

929- 20, amending Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04 Hotel/Motel 

Occupancy Tax, setting due dates and penalties and interest for delinquent 

accounts.  

 

B. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 

930- 20, amending Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04 Hotel/Motel 

Occupancy Tax to temporarily modify the hotel occupancy tax reporting and 

payment schedule.  

 

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 

931- 20, amending Chapter 8 Offenses and Nuisances, Article 8.03 Noise, 

Division 1. Generally, Sec. 8.03.003 General Prohibitions, of the code of 

ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding general 

residential construction working hours. 

 

 

Calendar of Events 

 

June 8th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 



 

June 22nd     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.     Municipal Building 

 

June 25th,26th & 29th     Brad Vacation 

 

July 3rd     Office Closed for Independence Day 

 

July 13th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.     Municipal Building 

 

July 27th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.     Municipal Building 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Brad Stafford 

City Manager 

 



 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

S.M.A.R.T. GOAL SETTING SYSTEM 

Area Today’s Date Target Date Date Achieved 

City Council Retreat 10/2/19 2019-2020  
 

Goal Statement: A descriptive statement of the DESIRED OUTCOME. 
(a S.M.A.R.T. Goal is Specific, Measurable, Actionable, Responsible and Time-bound) 

 
The Management Connection, Inc. provided professional facilitation to the City of Navasota Council on 

September 4th, 2019. This document captures the Council’s direction to staff.  
 

 

Action Steps (List the specific actions you will take to achieve this goal) Target Date Who 
Percentage 
Completion 

Outcomes 

Direction from Council  
1. There needs to be a discussion on how to get 

state lawmakers to partner with the City.  
a. Potentially inviting Schwertner, 

Leman, and Kolkhorst to visit and 
tour the city  

b. Alan Bojorquez is creating a report 
card on all the legislature and looking 
for help 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

2. Figure out a way to speed up the billing 
cycle to reduce the lag time from end of 
month to bill date for payments 

a. We can make every period longer or 
each period 31 days—it will take a 
few years, but you’ll catch up 

b. Propose a staff member under Lance 
and Rita to handle all meters—Meter 
Maintenance Technician 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

3. The City Manager will do a cost benefit 
analysis on the Boys and Girls Club  

a. Benefit of having them in the 
community along with the mechanics 
of it to present to the council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

4. The Council will move forward with the 
concept of bonds for utility and street 
improvements  

a. Bonds will be broken into three-year 
small increments 

i. Focus will be on high traffic 
roads first 

ii. Host community meetings to 
get more buy in from the city 

iii. City Manager will present the 
numbers to council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

5. Gather a proposal for a new look and cost of 
renovating fire station at the current 
location.  

a. A rendering needs to be created to 
show the public 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

6. Review the Social Media policy (specifically 
# 3 & 4) as it relates to non-city employees 
and council members.  

a. It’s a developing area legally. We 
should review the policy because it’s 
from 2014 and make sure it’s in 
accordance with current situation. 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

7. Design the new website  
a. Have 2-3 citizens sit in to consult 

about the ease of receiving 
notifications. Get a mixture of people 
who are and aren’t familiar with 
computers  

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

8. Find more ways to get coverage in the news 
a. neighbors@theeagle.com - send 

pictures to get included 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

9. Develop relationships with Boards and 
Commissions: 

a. Have a mandatory annual meeting 
with members to talk about what a 
comp plan is, what the Council’s 
expectations are, and that they need 
to be able to make decisions as a 
board. They need to know about open 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

meetings act, public information act, 
Robert’s Rules of Order, ect.  

i. By being involved, we have a 
chance to educate them about 
how the city works  

ii. We don’t want to take away 
their ability to think, but we 
can give them parameters  

iii. We should create a statement 
to be read before each meeting 
that says “we are our own 
board, we work toward the 
goals of the city and will stand 
by the final decision”. It’s a 
reminder that we’re all here to 
do the best for the city. A 
mission statement to go at the 
top of the packet. 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: May 26, 2020
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Staff Report:

(a) COVID-19 response;

(b) Street Department update;

(c) Parks Department update;

(d) Economic Development update;

(e) Board and Commission update; and

(f) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding
social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored
by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City
officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that
has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Brad Stafford, City Manager



 

ATTACHMENTS:



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: May 26, 2020
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration, and possible action on request from Summit
Precast Concrete, LLC for water rates for an industrial use meter.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
A new water meter installed on May 6, 2020 for Summit Precast
Concrete LLC is specifically used for Concrete Batch Plant
operations with an estimated usage of 300,000 gallons per
month, with zero discharge into the sewer lines. Summit Precast
Concrete LLC requests that the water rate on the meter be set at
the rate currently being charged inside the City Limits at
$0.51/100 with no sewer charge.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the water rate for the concrete
batch plant meter at Summit Precast Concrete to be charged at
the current in-town water rate and no charge for sanitary sewer.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Summit Precast Concrete LLC Water Fee Letter

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1589993591x_at.pdf


 

 
15349 Summit Park Drive.  Suite 101 

Montgomery, TX 77356 
(936)701-1977 

 

March 27, 2020 
 
Mr. Brad Stafford 
City Manager – City of Navasota 
200 E. McAlphine St. 
Navasota, TX 77868 
 
RE:  Water Fees – 9930 Industrial Dr.  Navasota TX 
 
Mr. Stafford, 
 
Summit Precast Concrete LLC would like to request the following be put before City Council for 
consideration: 

• Our current water meter remains in place at the current rate per the Industrial District Agreement.  
This will service our office and warehouse / shop area.  This rate includes sewer. 

• Our new water meter that is being installed 5/6/20 will be used specifically for our Concrete Batch 
Plant operations which includes Batch Water, Wash-Out, and Sprinkler use for aggregates.  Estimated 
usage will be 300,000 gallons / month.  There will be zero discharge into the sewer lines, therefore 
we request that the water rate on this meter be set at rate currently being charged inside the City 
Limits @ $.51/100 with no sewer charge. 

• Our company currently employs 6 people with an increase to 20 by the end of June, thus creating job 
opportunity for the City of Navasota. 

 
Thank you for your consideration into this matter. 
 
Any questions, please feel free to reach us at our office. 
 

Sincerely, 

 
Michael R Ogorchock 
Partner 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: May 26, 2020
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Discussion and possible action on traffic changes and
parking along Railroad Street.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Several buildings along Railroad Street are undergoing major
renovations with plans of a Hotel, Restaurants, Retail, Personal
Services and Apartments.  Owners of the buildings along that area
asked if the City would consider changing Railroad Street from
Johnson to Washington to a one-way street with traffic going
north.   
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of designating Railroad Street
between Johnson and Washington as one-way accommodating
north bound travel only.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Railroad Street parking info

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1589918254x_at.pdf












ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: May 26, 2020
 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 671-
20, regarding the requested annexation submitted by Miriah
Cunneen on behalf of Anthony J. Cunneen for a 9.063-acre tract
of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes
County, Texas, setting a date, time and place for a public hearing
on a proposed annexation of said property by the City of
Navasota.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City received a petition for annexation from Miriah Cunneen
on behalf of Anthony J. Cunneen requesting voluntary annexation
that consists one (1) tract of land containing 9.063 acres. The
area proposed for annexation is located on and along the western
City limits line adjacent to Fairway Drive.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 671-20, regarding
the requested annexation by by Miriah Cunneen on behalf of
Anthony J. Cunneen for a 9.063-acre tract of land in the Daniel
Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, setting a
date, time and place for a public hearing on a proposed
annexation of said property by the City of Navasota.
 

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 671-20
2. Annexation Petition
3. Power of Attorney
4. Aerial View

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1590068130x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1589914429x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1589914444x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1589914671x_at.pdf


 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 671-20 
 

A RESOLUTION REGARDING THE REQUESTED 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY; SETTING A DATE, 

TIME AND PLACE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY BY THE CITY OF 

NAVASOTA, TEXAS AT THE REQUEST OF THE OWNER OF 
THE PROPERTY; AUTHORIZING THE CITY SECRETARY TO 
NOTIFY THE PUBLIC OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING AND TO 
TAKE ADDITIONAL ACTIONS IN FURTHERANCE OF THE 

ANNEXATION; DIRECTING THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR TO PREPARE A SERVICE PLAN; 

AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO MAKE ANY NECESSARY 
OR APPROPRIATE CHANGES. 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code, V.T.C.A., 

and the City Charter of the City of Navasota, Texas (“City”) authorizes the City to 

annex territory in accordance with the procedures provided for therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City received a written request of the property owner 

requesting the annexation of the area described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 

and incorporated herein for all purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to annex the area described in Exhibit “A”; 

Now Therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NAVASOTA, TEXAS, 

Section 1. That on the 8th day of June, 2020, at 6:00 o’clock p.m. in the 

City Council Chambers, City Hall, 200 E. McAlpine, Navasota, Texas, the City 

Council will hold a public hearing giving all interested persons the right to appear 

and be heard on the proposed annexation by the City of Navasota, Texas of the 



 

2 
 

property described in Exhibit “A”. 

Section 2. The City Secretary of the City of Navasota is hereby 

authorized and directed to cause notice of said hearing to be published once in a 

newspaper having general circulation in the City and in the above-described 

territory not more than twenty (20) days nor less than ten (10) days prior to the 

date of said public hearing, in accordance with Chapter 43 of the Texas Local 

Government Code. The City Secretary of the City of Navasota is hereby further 

authorized and directed to cause notice of said hearing to be posted on the City 

of Navasota’s Internet website on or after the 20th day but before the 10th day 

before the date of the hearing and must remain posted until the date of the 

hearing, in accordance with Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

The City Secretary, or other appropriate staff, of the City of Navasota is hereby 

further authorized and directed to take any and all actions and to cause any 

additional notices as may be required by state law or the City Charter in 

furtherance of the annexation of the property described herein. 

Section 3. The City Council accepts the service plan agreement 

negotiated with the property owner, which attached as Exhibit “B”, and 

authorizes the Mayor to execute said agreement. 

Section 4. In the event it is necessary or appropriate to revise any 

hearing date or hearing notices provided for herein, the Mayor is hereby 

authorized to make said changes and execute any necessary documentation 



 

3 
 

regarding same. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 26TH DAY OF MAY, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
                                                     ____________________________ 
                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



EXHIBIT “A” 
  

Meets & Bounds  

  

BEGINNING at a found 1/2 inch iron rod for the Northeast corner of Tract One, called 2.563 

acres, as described in a Deed to Anthony J. Cunneen, et ux (Doc. #: 2020-304752), in the 

Southeast ROW of FM Highway 105 (120 ft. ROW (111/284, 225/274)), in the West line of a 

called 12.105 acre tract as described in a Deed to the City of Navasota (462/281) and same 

being in the West margin of Fairway Drive;  

  

THENCE S 02°50'40" E, 1,417.69 ft., along the West margin of Fairway Drive, a West line of said 

12.105 acre Navasota tract (Doc. #: 2020-304752), a West line of a called 20.95 acre tract as 

described in a Deed to the City of Navasota (182/608) and the East lines of Cunneen's Tracts 

One, Two and Three (Doc. #: 2020-204752) to a found bold inside a square 1 inch tubing in 

concrete and at fence corner for the Southeast corner of Tract Three, a Southwest corner of 

said 20.95 acre Navasota tract and same being in the generally fenced and North line of a called 

8.00 acre tract as described in a Deed to Christy Curry Garcia (1230/160);  

  

THENCE S 87°00'37" W, 305.62 ft., along a portion of the generally fenced and North line of said 

8.00 acre Garcia tract (1230/160) and the South line of Cunneen's Third Tract (Doc. #: 2020-

304752) to a Point on the Southwest edge of an 8 inch treated fence corner post for the 

Southwest corner thereof and same being a Southeast corner of the residue of Tract Three, 

called 39.3497 acres, more or less, as described in a Deed to J&H Navasota Development, LLC 

(Doc. #: 2020-305736), from which a found 1/2 inch iron rod projecting 6 inches and in 

concrete brs. N 57°30'44" E, 1.29 ft.;  

  

THENCE N 02°50'55" W, 719.10 ft., along the West lines of Cunneen's Tract Three and a portion 

of Tract Two (Doc. #: 2020-304752), an East line of said 39.3497 acre J&H Navasota 

Development, LLC tract (Doc. #: 2020305736) and the East line of a called 2.87 acre tract as 

described in a Deed to Gene Baldobino, Jr. (1503/115) to a found 1/2 inch iron rod for a 

common corner thereof;  

  

THENCE along the Westerly lines of Cunneen's Tract Two and One (Doc. #: 2020-304752) and 

the East lines of said 2.87 acre Baldobino tract (1503/115) as follows:  

  

1) N 15°24'29" E, 163.52 ft., to a found 1/2 inch iron rod and  

2) N 06°03'28" W, 437.89 ft., to a found 1/2 inch iron rod for the Northeast corner of 

said 2.87 acre tract, the Northwest corner of Tract One and same being in the 

Southeast ROW of State Highway  

105;  

  

THENCE N 66°11'45" E, 298.77 ft., along the North line of Cunneen's Tract One (Doc. #: 2020-

304752) and the Southeast ROW of State Highway 105 to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and 

containing 9.061 acres of land.  

  

Basis of Bearings & Distances:  

Grid North, State Plane Coordinate System of 1983, Central Zone, Leica RTK Network.    

  



 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CITY OF NAVASOTA TEXAS 

ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN AGREEMENT 

Introduction: 

Pursuant to the Local Government Code, Chapter 43, Section 43.0672, the City of Navasota has 
prepared this service plan agreement for the delivery of municipal services to the territory being 
proposed for annexation to the City. The area proposed for annexation consists of one tract of 
land containing a total of 9.063 acres. The area proposed for annexation is located on and along 
the western city limits line. The annexation of these properties is requested by Miriah Cunneen 
on behalf of the owner Anthony J. Cunneen, by a petition dated May 5, 2020. The property 
boundaries are contiguous with the existing city limits and are entirely within the City's 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ). There are no industrial businesses in this area. The land is 
Agricultural Open (AO) in all areas and is adjacent to the municipal airport. 

FOR SERVICES ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF ANNEXATION: 

1.          POLICE PROTECTION 

The City of Navasota, Texas, and its Police Department will provide police protection to 
the newly annexed area at the same or similar level of service now being provided to 
other areas of the City of Navasota, Texas, with similar topography, land use and 
population density within the newly annexed area. 

2.          FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

The City of Navasota, Texas, is presently serviced by the Navasota Fire Department, 
which will provide fire protection and emergency medical services to the newly 
annexed tract at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other areas 
of the City of Navasota, Texas, with similar topography, land use and population density 

within the City. 

3.           SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 

At the present time the City of Navasota, Texas, is using a franchised contractor for 
collection of solid waste and refuse within the city limits of the City of Navasota, Texas. 
Upon payment of any required deposits and the agreements to pay lawful service fees 
and charges, solid waste collection will be provided to citizens in the newly annexed area 

to the extent that the City's contractor has access to the area to be serviced. 

4.           MAINTENANCE OF WATER AND WASTE WATER FACILITIES 

Any and all water and wastewater facilities owned or maintained by the City of 
Navasota, Texas, and situated in the area at the time of the proposed annexation shall 

continue to be maintained by the City of Navasota, Texas. Any and all water facilities 



2. 

which may be acquired subsequent to the annexation of the proposed area shall be 

maintained by the City of Navasota, Texas, to the extent of its ownership. The now 
existing water and wastewater mains at their existing locations shall be available for 

point of use extension based upon the current City's standard water and wastewater 

extension policies now existing or as may be amended. 

5.           MAINTENANCE OF ROADS AND STREETS 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, is not aware of the existence of any 
roads or streets now located in the area proposed for annexation. In the event any such 
roads or streets do exist and are public facilities owned by or dedicated to the City of 
Navasota, Texas, the City will maintain such areas to the same extent and degree that it 
maintains roads and streets and other similar facilities of the City of Navasota, Texas. 
Any and all roads or streets which have been dedicated to and accepted by the City of 
Navasota, Texas, or which are owned by the City of Navasota, Texas, shall be 
maintained to the same degree and extent that other roads and streets are maintained in 
areas with similar topography, land use and population density. Any and all lighting of 
road and streets which may be positioned in a right-of-way, roadway or utility company 
easement shall be maintained by the applicable utility company servicing the City of 
Navasota, Texas, pursuant to the rules, regulations and fees of such utility. 

6.          MAINTENANCE OF PARKS PLAYGROUNDS AND SWIMMING POOLS 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, is not aware of the existence of any 
parks, playgrounds or public swimming pools now located in the area proposed for 
annexation. [n the event any such parks, playgrounds or swimming pools do exist and are 
public facilities, the City of Navasota, Texas, will maintain such areas to the same extent 
and degree that it maintains parks, playgrounds and swimming pools and other similar 

areas of the City now incorporated in the City of Navasota, Texas. 

7.         MAINTENANCE OF ANY PUBLICLY OWNED FACILITY BUILDING OR MUNICIPAL SERVICE 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, is not aware of the existence of any 
publicly owned facility, building or other municipal service now located in the area 
proposed for annexation. In the event any such publicly owned facility, building or 
municipal service does exist and are public facilities, the City of Navasota, Texas, will 
maintain such areas to the same extent and degree that it maintains publicly owned 
facilities, buildings or Municipal services of the City now incorporated in the City or 
Navasota, Texas. 

CONSTRUCTION OF ANY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO BEGIN WITHIN 2-1/2 YEARS: 

1.          POLICE PROTECTION FIRE PROTECTION & SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, finds and determines it to be 
unnecessary to acquire or construct any capital improvement within 2-1/2 years of the 



3. 

effective date of the annexation of the particular annexed area for the purposes of 
providing police 

protection, fire protection or solid waste collection. The City Council finds and 
determines that it has at the present time adequate facilities to provide the same type, 
kind and level of protection and service which is presently being administered to other 
areas already incorporated in the City of Navasota, Texas, with the same or similar 
topography, land use and population density. 

 WATER FACILITIES 

For the next 2-h years the City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, believes that City 
water and wastewater mains exist for points of connection for serviceable extensions to 
provide water and wastewater service within the area to be annexed pursuant to the City's 
standard water extension policies now in existence or as may be amended by the City 
Council. 

3. ROADS AND STREETS 

Maintenance of properly dedicated roads and streets will be consistent with the 
maintenance provided by the City to other roads and streets in areas of similar 
topography, land use and population density. 

4.       MAINTENANCE OF PARKS PLAYGROUNDS AND SWIMMING POOLS AND 

THE MAINTENANCE OF ANY OTHER PUBLICLY OWNED FACILITY 

BUILDING OR SERVICE 

To the extent that it becomes necessary because of development demands, population 

growth, and a bona fide need, the City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, will 
undertake to provide any such facility which it deems necessary to adequately provide 

for the health and safety of the citizens of the newly incorporated area based upon the 
standard considerations of topography, land use and population density. 

SPECIFIC FINDINGS 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas, finds and determines that this proposed 
Service Plan will not provide any fewer services, and it will not provide a lower level of service 
in the area proposed to be annexed than were in existence in the proposed area at the time 
immediately preceding the annexation process. 

Furthermore, the City Council of the City or Navasota, Texas, finds and determines the 
nature of the area is characteristically different from other developed areas within the corporate 

limits of the City of Navasota, Texas. Consequently, because of the differing characteristics of 
topography, land use and population density, the service levels which may ultimately be 

provided in the newly annexed area may differ somewhat from services provided to other areas 
of the City of Navasota, Texas. These differences are specifically dictated because of differing 

characteristics of the property and the City of Navasota, Texas, will undertake to perform 
consistent with this service plan so as to provide this newly annexed area with the same type, 



4. 

kind and quality of service presently enjoyed by the citizens of the City of Navasota. Texas, who 
reside in areas of similar topography, land use and population density. 

 

APPROVED on this the 26th day of May, 2020 

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 

 

 

BERT MILLER, MAYOR    

 

ATTEST: 

 

 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 

LAND OWNER 

 

Miriah Cunneen (on behalf of Anthony J. Cunneen) 









































 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: May 26, 2020
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 672-
20, Supporting the City of Navasota COVID-19 response grant
application.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The Governor's Office is seeking applications for the Coronavirus
Emergency Supplemental Funding Program. With the occurrence
of the pandemic event, Covid-19, the City of Navasota purchased
supplies in order to reduce workplace exposure and help slow the
spread of the virus. In addition to supplies, Gov. Greg Abbott
announced that all Texas schools would be closed for the
remainder of the 2019-2020 academic year. The two school
resource officers, assigned to Navasota ISD, are being utilized in
patrol and criminal investigations and are being paid through the
City's budget. The City of Navasota seeks assistance, through the
grant application, with these costs in the amount of $31,455.52.
In addition, this resolution is a requirement to obtain the grant.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 672-20, Supporting
the City of Navasota COVID-19 response grant application.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 672-20

Shawn Myatt, Chief of Police

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1589839362x_at.pdf


 
RESOLUTION NO. 672-20 

 

 
SUPPORTING THE CITY OF NAVASOTA COVID-19 RESPONSE  

GRANT APPLICATION 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Navasota finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 
Navasota, that the City of Navasota COVID-19 Response grant be submitted; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Navasota agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of the 
Office of the Governor funds, the City of Navasota assures that the funds will be 
returned to the Office of the Governor in full. 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Navasota designates Shawn Myatt, Chief of Police, as the 
grantee’s authorized official.  The authorized official is given the power to apply for, 
accept, reject, alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Navasota approves 
submission of the grant application for the City of Navasota Covid-19 Response to the 
Office of the Governor. 
 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA ON THIS THE 26TH DAY OF MAY, 2020. 
 
 
 
                                                                 __________________________ 
                                                                          BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 

 

 

 

 
 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: May 26, 2020
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon
with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is
necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember,
in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda
for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of
the regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 929-20, amending Chapter 11, Taxation, Article
11.04 Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax, setting due dates and penalties
and interest for delinquent accounts.

B. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 930-20, amending Chapter 11, Taxation, Article
11.04 Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax to temporarily modify the hotel
occupancy tax reporting and payment schedule.

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 931-20, amending Chapter 8 Offenses and
Nuisances, Article 8.03 Noise, Division 1. Generally, Sec. 8.03.003
General Prohibitions, of the code of ordinances of the City of
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding general residential
construction working hours.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Legal Counsel has revised Ordinance No. 929-20 and Ordinance
No. 931-20 in response to the direction of the City Council at the
last meeting. 
 

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda items which
include (a) the second reading of Ordinance No. 929-20,
amending Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04 Hotel/Motel
Occupancy Tax, setting due dates and penalties and interest for
delinquent accounts; (b) the second reading of Ordinance No.
930-20, amending Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04 Hotel/Motel
Occupancy Tax to temporarily modify the hotel occupancy tax
reporting and payment schedule and (c) the second reading of
Ordinance No. 931-20, amending Chapter 8 Offenses and
Nuisances, Article 8.03 Noise, Division 1. Generally, Sec. 8.03.003
General Prohibitions, of the code of ordinances of the City of
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding general residential
construction working hours.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 929-20
2. Ordinance No. 930-20
3. Ordinance No. 931-20

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1589921282x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1589921303x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1589921335x_at.pdf


 

ORDINANCE NO.  929-20 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS AMENDING CHAPTER 11, 
TAXATION, ARTICLE 11.04 HOTEL/MOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS REGARDING REGULATIONS 
APPLICABLE TO COLLECTION OF HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER AND SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR PROPER NOTICE 
AND OPEN MEETINGS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule municipality; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, the City 
has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations that are for good government, 
peace and order of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, Section 
51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code allows for the imposition and 

collection of hotel occupancy taxes by municipalities; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code the City has 

imposed a hotel occupancy tax and created regulations for the collection of said tax; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Chapter 11, Taxation, of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Navasota to reflect changes in the regulations applicable to 
the collection of the hotel occupancy tax;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 

Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04, Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax, Sec. 11.04.001, 
Definitions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, is hereby 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
 
Sec. 11.04.001     Definitions 

The following words, terms and phrases are, for the purpose of this article, except 

where the context clearly indicates a different meaning, defined as follows: 

City secretary. The city secretary of the City of Navasota. 



 

Consideration. The cost of a room, sleeping space, bed, or other facility in such 
hotel/motel, and shall not include the cost of any food served or personal services 
rendered to the occupant of such room not related to the cleaning and readying of such 
room, sleeping space, bed or other facility for occupancy. 

Extraterritorial jurisdiction. Shall have the meaning as provided in the Local Government 
Code of the state and shall include that area within one (1) mile of the city boundaries. 

Finance director. The finance director of the City of Navasota. 

Hotel. Any building or buildings, trailer or facility in which the public may, for a 
consideration, obtain sleeping accommodations. The term shall include hotels, motels, 
tourist homes, houses or courts, lodging houses, inns, rooming houses, or other 
buildings where rooms are furnished for a consideration, but hotel shall not be defined 
so as to include hospitals, sanitariums or nursing homes. 

Occupancy. The use or possession, or the right to the use or possession, of any room or 
rooms, sleeping space, bed, or other facility for occupancy. 

Occupant. Anyone who, for a consideration, uses, possesses, or has a right to use or 
possess any room or rooms, sleeping space, bed or other facility in a hotel under any 
lease, concession, permit, right of access, license, contract or agreement. 

Permanent resident. Any occupant who has or shall have the right to occupancy of any 
room or rooms or sleeping space or other facility in a hotel for at least thirty (30) 
consecutive days during the calendar year or preceding year. 

Person. Any individual, company, corporation or association owning, operating, 
managing or controlling any hotel. 

Quarterly period. The regular calendar quarters of the year, the first quarter being 
composed of the months of January, February, and March; the second quarter being the 
months of April, May and June; the third quarter being the months of July, August and 
September; and the fourth quarter being the months of October, November and 
December. 

 
 

SECTION 12. 
 

Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04, Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax, Sec. 11.04.004, 
Reports, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended 
in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
 
Sec. 11.04.004     Reports and Payments 
 



 

(a) On or before the 20th day of the month following each quarterly period, 
every person required hereby to collect the tax imposed by this Article shall file a 
report with the City Ffinance Ddirector showing the consideration paid for all 
room occupancies in the preceding quarter, and the amount of tax collected on 
the City’s behalf on such occupancies at the time of filing such report. The 
reporting form will be provided by the City and shall include all information that 
the City Ffinance Ddirector determines is necessary to collect.  

(b) Each quarter is a reporting period and the taxes imposed by and 
collected under this Article are due and payable to the City Ffinance Ddirector on 
or before the 20th day of the month following each quarterly period. 

(c) If the report is filed and the tax is paid before the due date, a 1% 
discount may be taken. 

(d) The City Ffinance Ddirector shall upon reasonable notice have access to 
books and records necessary to enable him/her to determine the correctness of 
any report filed as required by this Article and the amount of taxes due under 
the provisions of this Article. 

 
SECTION 23. 

 
Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04, Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax, Sec. 11.04.005, 

Rules and Regulations, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, is 
hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 11.04.005     Violations 
 
If any person required by the provisions of this Article to collect the tax imposed herein, 
make reports as required herein, and pay to the City Ffinance Ddirector the tax imposed 
herein shall fail to collect such tax, shall fail to file such report, or shall fail to pay such 
tax, or if such person shall file a false report, such person shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed five 
hundred dollars ($500.00). 

 
SECTION 34.  

 
Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04, Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax, Sec. 11.04.006, 

Violations, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended 
in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 11.04.006     Use of revenue 

The City Council may makeenter into interlocal contracts with designated agencies or 
organizations to undertake and implement the provisions of section 351.101 of the 
Texas Tax Code, on behalf of the City. 

SECTION 45.  
 



 

Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04, Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax, Sec. 11.04.007, 
Use of Revenue, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, is hereby 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

 
 
Sec. 11.04.007     Penalties and interest on delinquent taxes 
 
If any person shall fail to file a report as required herein or shall fail to pay to the City 
Ffinance Ddirector the tax as imposed herein when said report or payment is due, he 
shall forfeit five (5) percent of the amount due as a penalty, and after the first thirty 
(30) days he shall forfeit an additional five (5) percent of such tax. Provided, however, 
that the penalty shall never be less than one dollar ($1.00). Delinquent taxes shall draw 
interest at the rate of ten (10) percent per annum beginning sixty (60) days from the 
date due. 
 

SECTION 56. 
 

Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04, Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax, Sec. 11.04.008, 
Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Taxes, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Navasota, Texas, is hereby deleted in its entirety.  
 

SECTION 67. 
SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
All provisions of any ordinance, resolution or other action of the City in conflict 

with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent they are in conflict. Any remaining 
portions of said ordinances, resolutions or other actions shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 

SECTION 78. 
SEVERABILITY 

 
Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance be 

declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is expressly 
provided that any and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force 
and effect. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, 
and each section, subsection, sentences and clauses and phrases remaining should any 
provision be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 
 

SECTION 89. 
REPEALER 

 
Any other ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are 

hereby expressly repealed. 
 

SECTION 910. 
EFFECTIVE AND EXPRIRATION DATE 

 



 

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication, as may be required by governing law. 

 
 
 
 

SECTION 1011. 
PROPER NOTICE AND MEETINGS 

 
It is hereby officially found and determined that the meetings at which this 

Ordinance was passed were open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place and purpose of said meetings were given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 11TH DAY OF MAY, 2020. 
 
 
                                                                    _______________________ 
                                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 8TH DAY OF JUNE, 2020. 
 
 
                                                                    _______________________ 
                                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO.  930-20 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS AMENDING 
CHAPTER 11, TAXATION, ARTICLE 11.04 HOTEL/MOTEL OCCUPANCY 
TAX, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS TO 
TEMPORARILY MODIFY THE HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX REPORTING AND 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER AND SAVINGS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR PROPER NOTICE AND 
OPEN MEETINGS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule 
municipality; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, 

the City has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations that are for good 
government, peace and order of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, 
Section 51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code allows for the imposition 

and collection of hotel occupancy taxes by municipalities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19 

(Coronavirus) Pandemic has significantly affected local hoteliers situated in the 
City of Navasota and its extraterritorial jurisdiction; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Chapter 11, Taxation, of 

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota by temporarily modifying and 
extending the deadlines for filing required quarterly tax reports and quarterly 
payment of local hotel occupancy taxes in order to mitigate some of the negative 
economic impacts of the COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Pandemic on local hoteliers;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 

Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04, Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax, Sec. 
11.04.004, Reports, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, is 
hereby temporarily modified to extend the deadlines for the filing of required 



 

quarterly tax reports and quarterly payment of local hotel occupancy taxes to 
December 31, 2020, according to the following schedule: 

 
 Collection Quarter Regular Due Date Extended Due Date 
 First Quarter, 2020 April 20, 2020 December 31, 2020 
 Second Quarter, 2020 July 20, 2020 December 31, 2020 
 Third Quarter, 2020 October 20, 2020 December 31, 2020 
  
 
The modified and extended filing and payment deadlines shall only apply to the 
first quarter, second quarter, and third quarter of 2020. The regular reporting 
and payment deadlines shall apply to the fourth quarter of 2020, and all 
collection quarters occurring thereafter.   
 

SECTION 2. 
SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
All provisions of any ordinance, resolution or other action of the City in 

conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent they are in conflict. 
Any remaining portions of said ordinances, resolutions or other actions shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 3. 
SEVERABILITY 

 
Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it is expressly provided that any and all remaining portions of this 
Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. The City Council hereby declares 
that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, 
sentences and clauses and phrases remaining should any provision be declared 
unconstitutional or invalid. 
 

SECTION 4. 
REPEALER 

 
Any other ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance 

are hereby expressly repealed. 
 

SECTION 5. 
EFFECTIVE AND EXPRIRATION DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and publication as 

required by law.  This Ordinance shall automatically expire on January 1, 2021. 



 

SECTION 6. 
PROPER NOTICE AND MEETINGS 

 
It is hereby officially found and determined that the meetings at which 

this Ordinance was passed were open to the public as required and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meetings were given as required by 
the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 11TH DAY OF MAY, 2020. 
 
 
                                                         ________________________ 
                                                                MAYOR, BERT MILLER 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 8TH DAY OF JUNE, 2020. 
 
 
                                                         ________________________ 
                                                                MAYOR, BERT MILLER 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO.  931-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS AMENDING 
CHAPTER 8 OFFENSES AND NUISANCES, ARTICLE 8.03 NOISE, 
DIVISION 1. GENERALLY, SEC. 8.03.003 GENERAL 
PROHIBITIONS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS REGARDING GENERAL RESIDENTIAL 
CONSTRUCTION WORKING HOURS; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; FINDING PROPER 
NOTICE OF MEETING; AND PROVIDING FOR CERTIFICATION OF 
ADOPTION. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule 

municipality; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, 
the City has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations for the good 
government, peace and order of the City; and 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, 
Section 51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt certain regulations related 
to residential construction working hours; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it is in the best 
interest of the City to adopt the regulations as set forth herein below in order to 
protect the financial stability of the City; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas that: 

SECTION 1. FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this ordinance as if 
fully set forth herein. 
 
SECTION 2. 
  
Chapter 8 Offenses and Nuisances, Article 8.03 Noise, Division 1. Generally, Sec. 
8.03.003 General Prohibitions, (b), of the Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota, 
Texas is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 



(b)     It shall be unlawful for any person to play or operate or permit to be 
played or operated, within the City, any phonograph or radio or any loud-
speaking or noise-making device or attachment on any premises under the 
ownership, management or control of such person, when such premises are 
being used as a place of business, in such a manner or in such volume as to be 
reasonably calculated to disturb the peace or to be unreasonably offensive to the 
public or to the occupants of other premises in such vicinity. The operation of 
any equipment or the moving, handling, stacking or loading of any material in a 
manner that causes or generates loud noises during the course of business 
activities shall also be prohibitedallowed only between the hours of 7:00 
p.m.a.m. andto 7:00 a.m.p.m. each day of the week, including weekend days 
Monday through Saturday and between 12:00 p.m. (noon) on Sunday through 
Monday morning at 7:00 a.m. 
 
SECTION 3. 
  
Chapter 8 Offenses and Nuisances, Article 8.03 Noise, Division 1. Generally, Sec. 
8.03.003 General Prohibitions, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota, 
Texas is hereby amended by adding subsection (g) to read as follows: 
 
(g)    General residential construction activities shall be allowed only between the 
hours of 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. each day of the week, including weekend days. 
The delivery and installation of concrete and other onsite materials shall be 
allowed only between the hours 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. each day of the week, 
including weekend days,. Further, the use of all air horns are prohibited inside 
residential neighborhoods during residential construction activities unless for the 
purpose of an emergency. 

SECTION 4. CUMULATIVE EFFECT  

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all laws of the State of Texas and the 
United States governing the subject matter of this Ordinance, now existing or as 
hereafter amended.  
 
SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, 
clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and 
if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of 
this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation of this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional or 
invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 



 
 
 
SECTION 6. REPEALER CLAUSE 
Any provision of any prior ordinance of the City whether codified or uncodified, 
which are in conflict with any provision of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to 
the extent of the conflict, but all other provisions of the ordinances of the City 
whether codified or uncodified, which are not in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance, shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, approval and 
adoption on second reading, and its publication as may be required by law. 

 
SECTION 8. NOTICE OF MEETING 
Notice of the time and place, where and when said Ordinance would be 
considered by the City Council at a public meeting was given in accordance with 
applicable law, prior to the time designated for meeting.  
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 11TH DAY OF MAY, 2020. 
 
                                                                             
                                                         __________________________ 
                                                                 BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 8TH DAY OF JUNE, 2020. 
 
                                                                       
                                                          __________________________ 
                                                                 BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



CITY OF NAVASOTA
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1. PLANNING CALENDAR

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1590070552x_at.pdf


 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

 

MAY 26, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 5/11/2020           
1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) COVID-19 update; (b) Street Department Update; (c) Parks Department 

Update; (d) Economic Development Update; (e) Board and Commission update; and  
      (f) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.  Request from Summit Precast Concrete 
6.  Discussion on Railroad Street parking 
7.  Resolution No. 671-20, Fairway Drive annexation  
8.  Resolution No. 672-20, PD COVID-19 grant   
9.  Consent agenda: (a) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 929-20, amending collection of 
     Hotel/Motel Tax; (b) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 930-20, amending Hotel/Motel Tax 

reporting and payment schedules; and (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 931-20, amending 
residential construction working hours 

10. Adjourn 

 

JUNE 8, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 5/25/2020 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) Arts Council quarterly report for 2nd quarter; (b) Marketing and 

Communication update; (c) Board and Commission update; and (d) Reports from staff and 
City Council 

5.  Audit for FY 2018-2019 
6.  Public hearing on Navasota Abstract 
7.  Public hearing on amending zoning setbacks 
8.  1st reading of Ordinance No. _____, amending zoning setbacks 
9.  Public hearing on annexation, Fairway Drive 
10. Service plan for annexation 
11. 1st reading of Ordinance No. _____, annexation of Fairway Drive 
12. Resolution No. _____, investment policy 
13. Eligibility requirements for utility bill assistance 
14. Hazard pay policy 
15. Consent Agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of May 2020; and (b) Expenditures for the 

month of May 2020 
16. Adjourn 

 

JUNE 22, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 6/08/2020 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) Arts Council quarterly report for 2nd quarter; (b) Board and Commission 
     update; and (c) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.  1st reading of Ordinance No. ______ - alcohol in the central business district 
6.  Adjourn 

 
 
 



 
 

JULY 13, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 6/29/2020 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.  Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of June 2020; and (b) Expenditures for the 

month of June 2020 
6.   Adjourn 

 
 

JULY 27, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 7/13/2020 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.  Adjourn 

 


	Regular Council Meeting
	Agenda Item No.  -  City Manager's Message and Statements and Priorities
	 City Manager's Message
	 Statements and Priorities

	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) COVID-19 response;
(b) Street Department update;
(c) Parks Department update;
(d) Economic Development update;
(e) Board and Commission update; and
(f) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Consideration, and possible action on request from Summit Precast Concrete, LLC for water rates for an industrial use meter.
	 Summit Precast Concrete LLC Water Fee Letter

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Discussion and possible action on traffic changes and parking along Railroad Street.
	 Railroad Street parking info

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 671-20, regarding the requested annexation submitted by Miriah Cunneen on behalf of Anthony J. Cunneen for a 9.063-acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, setting a date, time and place for a public hearing on a proposed annexation of said property by the City of Navasota.
	 Resolution No. 671-20
	 Annexation Petition
	 Power of Attorney
	 Aerial View

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 672-20, Supporting the City of Navasota COVID-19 response grant application.
	 Resolution No. 672-20

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda.
Consent Items are:
A. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of  Ordinance No. 929-20, amending Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04 Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax, setting due dates and penalties and interest for delinquent accounts.
B.  Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 930-20, amending Chapter 11, Taxation, Article 11.04 Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax to temporarily modify the hotel occupancy tax reporting and payment schedule.
C.  Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 931-20, amending Chapter 8 Offenses and Nuisances, Article 8.03 Noise, Division 1. Generally, Sec. 8.03.003 General Prohibitions, of the code of ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding general residential construction working hours.
	 Ordinance No. 929-20
	 Ordinance No. 930-20
	 Ordinance No. 931-20

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  1. Planning Calendar

	 Planning Calendar


